
Lincoln, Fort Rice, Riverview, Florence Lake, Burnt Creek, Canfield, Lyman, & Phoenix 
Unorganized Townships 

 
Burleigh County Commission Meeting Agenda 

Tom Baker Meeting Room, City/County Office Building, 221 N 5th St, Bismarck 

 

Attend in Person | Watch live on Government Access Channels 2 or 602 | Listen to Radio Access 102.5 FM |  
Stream on freetv.org or Dakota Media Access Facebook Live | Replay later from freetv.org 

January 17, 2024 
 
5:00 PM  
 
COUNTY WEED BOARD 

1. Meeting called to order by the Chairman of the Board.  

2. Roll call of members. 

3. Review of Rod Backman weed bill.  

4. Discussion about future meetings location and recording.  

5. Other Business. 

6. Adjourn.  

 
COUNTY COMMISSION 
 
1. Meeting called to order by the Chairman of the Board. 

2. Roll call of members. 

3. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance presented by Chaplain. 

4. Approval of Agenda. 

5. Public comment (excluding public hearing items.) 

6. Consideration and approval of the January 3rd, 2024, meeting minutes and bills. 

7. Consent Agenda: 
a. Abatements. 
b. Resolution authorizing County Auditor/Treasurer to make payment upon demand 

for all invoices and claims for utility services, gas, fuel, and oil (per Bill Payment 
Policy).  

c. Designation of depositories.  
d. Applications for licenses, raffles, and special events permits. 
e. Check replacement.  
f. Second Access permit request. 

 
8. Assignment of portfolios.  

https://dakotamediaaccess.org/
https://www.facebook.com/dakotamediaaccess
https://dakotamediaaccess.org/


9. County Engineer Hall: 

a. PUBLIC HEARING on petition to vacate section line. 

b. 2024 Project priority list.  

10. Commissioner Schwab: 

a. State Property Tax credit.  

11. Daniel Schwartz: 

a. MOU between Burleigh County and the University of Mary.  

12. Sheriff Leben: 

a. Quarterly Report.  

13. Chairman Bitner: 

a. Official appointment of Leigh Jacobs as County Finance Director.  

b. Provident Building RFP for fan coil piping replacement. 

c. Election status update.  

14. Comm. Munson: 

a. Fair Board discussion.  

15. Other Business.  

Adjourn. 

The next regularly scheduled Commission meeting will be on February 5th, 2024.  

 
Mark Splonskowski 
Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer/Tax  
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY 
 

 

 

 

WEED 
BOARD 





























 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY 
 

 

 

 

COMMISSION 



 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
MEETING 

JANUARY 3RD, 2024 

 
5:00 PM  

Chairman Bakken (via Zoom) called the regular meeting of the Burleigh County Commission to order. 
 
Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski called for nominations for Chairman for the year 2024. Comm. Schwab 
nominated Comm. Bitner. Comm. Munson nominated Chairman Bakken. There were no other nominations.  
Commissioners Schwab, Woodcox, Bitner, and Chairman Bakken voted “AYE” for Comm. Bitner. Comm. 
Munson voted “NAY”. Chairman Bitner then called for nominations for Vice Chairman. Comm. Woodcox 
nominated Comm. Munson and Chairman Bitner nominated Comm. Bakken. Commissioners Munson and 
Woodcox voted “AYE” for Comm. Munson with Commissioners Schwab, Bakken, and Chair Bitner voting 
“NAY”. All members both present and via zoom then voted “AYE” on Comm. Bakken as Vice Chairman.   
 
Chairman Bitner then discussed the assignment of portfolios. Comm. Woodcox wanted to see a list of who 
was currently holding what portfolio which was not in the packet. Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski stated he 
will provide this list to the board in preparation for the next meeting. Comm. Bakken suggested holding the 
portfolios in status quo until Chairman Bitner had an opportunity to visit with department heads and the 
commissioners to make sure everything is a good fit. Chairman Bitner then asked that this be tabled until 
the next meeting so he can visit with department heads but noted that he will not discuss this with the 
commissioners. The commissioners can submit their opinions to the Auditor’s Office. 
 
Roll call of the members: Commissioners Woodcox, Munson, Schwab, Bakken (via Zoom), and Chairmam 
Bitner were present. 

There was then an Invocation by the Chaplain and the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the meeting agenda. All members present 
voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Chairman Bitner opened the meeting for public comment and there was none. 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the December 18th, 2023 meeting minutes 
and bills. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried. 

The following abatements were presented for the Board’s consideration; a complete copy of which are        
  on file and available for inspection in the office of the Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer: 
 

Owner Tax 
Year 

Legal Description Credit Type Current 
MV 

Reduced 
MV 

Larry & Kathlyn 
Wall 

2021 N1/2 SW1/4 + SW1/4 
SW1/4 6-144-78 

91 acres of 
water 

$44,000 $10,200 

Larry & Kathlyn 
Wall 

2022 N1/2 SW1/4 + SW1/4 
SW1/4 6-144-78 

91 acres of 
water 

$44,000 $10,200 



 

Larry & Kathlyn 
Wall 

2023 N1/2 SW1/4 + SW1/4 
SW1/4 6-144-78 

Inundated acres $46,500 $1,300 

Jason & Danielle 
Levey 

2023 Block 23, Sturgis, West 62 
FT of Lots 13-16 

Error in property 
description 

$265,500 $215,400 

Jason & Danielle 
Levey 

2023 Lots 9-10, Block 11, 
Haight & Little's 

Error in property 
description 

$268,500 $224,500 

Zachariah D & 
Ashley M Hay 

2023 Lot 5, Block 5, Horizon 
Heights 2nd 

Error in property 
description 

$392,200 $334,000 

Justin Paul 
Williams 

2023 Lot 7, Block 1, High 
Meadows 11th Replat 

Error in property 
description 

$398,500 $298,900 

Ryan Hoerner 2023 Lots 20-22 less South 1' 
of Lot 20, Block 81, 
William's Survey 

Error in property 
description 

$145,000 $116,000 

Kohl's Illinois, Inc. 2023 Lot 6, Block 1, Pinehurst 
Square Addition 

Error in property 
description 

$9,299,200 $8,865,500 

Rainmaker 
Properties LLC 

2023 Lots 9-10, Block 6, 
Morningside Heights Rep 
B6 

Error in property 
description 

$1,117,100 $1,031,400 

Ralph Messer 2022 Lot 9, Block 56, Northern 
Pacific 2nd 

Exempt from 
taxation 

$257,200 $0 

Ralph Messer 2023 Lot 9, Block 56, Northern 
Pacific 2nd 

Exempt from 
taxation 

$261,300 $0 

Ralph Messer 2022 Lot 10, Block 56, 
Northern Pacific 2nd 

Exempt from 
taxation 

$229,200 $0 

Ralph Messer 2023 Lot 10, Block 56, 
Northern Pacific 2nd 

Exempt from 
taxation 

$257,500 $0 

Ryan Sabin 2022 100% Disabled Veteran Block 18, Southwood 
Terrance 2nd Replat, 
North 261.47' of 
East 257.98' of Lot 8 
East Riverwood 
Condominium Unit 8 

$150,600 $0 

Troy & Jennifer 
Marchus 

2023 Error in property 
description 

Lots 3-4, Block 
57, Original Plat 

$129,300 $106,700 

Neal & Heather 
Leier 

2023 Error in property 
description 

Block 3, 
Southbay 2nd 
Addition, Lot 119 
& undivided 

$804,000 $749,100 



 

interest in 
common areas 

Wade & Kayla 
Teneyck 

2023 70% Disabled Veteran Lot 16, Block 4, 
Huber Re Estate 
Trust 1st 
Addition 

$302,400 $176,400 

Joseph J & Carol T 
Kuntz 

2023 100% Disabled Veteran Block 6, Lincoln, 
Beg 200' South & 
200' East of NW 
corner; W 75' S 95' 
E 75' N95' to 
beginning 

$222,400 $42,400 

Ryan Sabin 2023 100% Disabled Veteran Block 18, 
Southwood 
Terrance 2nd 
Replat, North 
261.47' of East 
257.98' of Lot 8 
East Riverwood 
Condominium 
Unit 8 

$159,200 $0 

100 West Main 
Limited 
Partnership 

2023 Error in property 
description 

Lots 7-11, Block 
56, Original Plat 

$3,762,200 $3,288,300 

Gladys & Greg R 
Grube 

2023 Block 1, Brandon Heights, 
Lot 4 Brandon heights 
Condominiums Five unit 
D 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$22,400 $20,400 

Greg Schlosser & 
Lauri Hanson 

2023 Lot 2, Block 4, Eagle Crest Error in property 
description 

$647,800 $622,200 

John Karolewics 
& Caren Stewart 

2023 Lot 13, Block 5, Peet's 4th 90% Disabled 
Veteran 

$381,200 $340,700 

Kaye Anderson 2023 Block 5, City Lands 138-
80, pt of NW1/4 NW1/4 
Sec 5 & pt of Gov L1 Sec 6 
138-80 Riverside Park 
Condominiums unit 108 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$195,100 $178,842 

Michael & 
Pamela Smith 

2023 Lot 5, Block 8, Shamrock 
Acres 3rd 

80% Disabled 
Veteran 

$291,000 $147,000 

Joseph E Sr & 
Kathryn Tibor 

2023 Lot 9, Block 2, Register's 
1st 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$84,000 $0 



 

Judith A 
Schneider 

2023 Lot 2, Block 29, Wachter's 
3rd 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$268,400 $68,400 

Joanne Monson 2023 Lot 3, Block 9, Boulder 
Ridge 1st 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$496,700 $396,700 

Charles W & 
Laura M Gitter 

2023 Lot 4A, Block 4, Country 
West III 

Error in property 
description 

$462,200 $390,100 

David Breding 2023 Lots 1-3, Block 8, 
Macober's First - Wilton 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$41,700 $20,850 

Andrew W & 
Darlene Weigel 

2023 Lot 2 Less South 5', Block 
3, Washington Meadows 
3rd 

50% Disabled 
Veteran 

$332,600 $242,600 

Shirley & Cleon 
Hoggarth 

2023 Lot 17, Block 6, Eastview 50% Homestead 
Credit 

$291,500 $191,500 

Alma Nelson 2023 Lot 1, Block 3, 
Washington Heights 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$244,300 $144,300 

Adam M & 
Jenene K Leintz 

2023 Block 1, Boulder Ridge 
2nd Addition, Lot 15 & 
undiv inter in following 
common areas: Aud Lot B 
of L13, L15 Aud Lot B of 
L17, B1; L8 B2; L7 B3; L11 
B9 & L12-13 B10 Boulder 
Ridge 1st & Lot 1 B 1 & 
lot 7 B3 Boulder Ridge 
3rd 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$521,400 $421,400 

Diordan T 
McLean 

2023 Lots 7-8, Block 3, 
Mackin's Subdivision 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$129,100 $0 

Aaron & Devonne 
Schantz 

2023 Lot 12 & undivided 
interest in common area, 
Block 3, Southbay 2nd 
addition 

Error in property 
description 

$667,000 $571,900 

Craig D & Lynn A 
Grassel 

2023 Lots 16-17, Block 23, 
Wachter's 9th 

Error in property 
description 

$600,100 $339,600 

Michael K & 
Sarah M Sayler 

2023 Lot 28, Block 10, Country 
West III 

Error in property 
description 

$613,200 $566,100 

Karen Stolt 2023 West 50' of Lots 1-2, 
Block 78, McKenzie & 
Coffin's 

Homestead 
Credit 
(additional 
credit) 

$116,300 $16,300 



 

Bill Heckelsmiller 2023 Auditor's Lot A, Section 
28, Long Lake Township 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$90,100 $0 

James J & Cynthia 
A Bechtold 

2023 Lot 21, Block 2, Wachter's 
6th 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$423,800 $223,800 

Irene Miller 2023 Lot 21, Block 3, 
Grandview Heights 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$337,300 $137,300 

Ronald S Perry 2023 Block 2, Park Hill (Aud 
Lots), beginning 1050'E of 
SW corner of NE1/4 of 
section 5 & 248.9'N of 
said point thence W65', 
N150', E65', S150' to 
beginning 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$236,100 $36,100 

James & Dorothy 
Kratovil 

2023 Lot 6, Block 2, Riverside 
Second 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$390,400 $190,400 

Diane & Allen 
Dockter 

2023 Lot 9, Block 8, Eastside 
Heights 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$267,700 $167,700 

James A & Violet 
S Ryckman 

2023 Lot 1, Block 1, Sattler's 
Sunrise 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$292,800 $192,800 

Ella Peightal 
Family Trust 

2023 Block 21, Lounsberry 
Outlots, beginning at NW 
cor S 50' E 150' N 50'W 
150' to beginning 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$207,200 $7,200 

Victoria L Carvell 2023 Lot 10, Block 3, Sonnet 
Heights subdivision 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$338,000 $138,000 

William R & Kerry 
A Horton 

2023 Lot 8, Block 3, Prairie Hills 100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$263,000 $63,000 

Florence Baelser 2023 Lot 10, Block 25, 
subdivision of Lounsberry 
OL 25 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$264,900 $164,900 

Elizabeth Walth 2023 Lot 5, Block 24, Homan 
Acres 5th 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$418,100 $218,100 

Ila K Allison 2023 West 80' of Lots 1-3 & 
west 80' of north 15' of 
Lot 4, Block 37, Flannery 
& Wetherby 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$140,500 $0 



 

Lawler, C & 
Kelsch, J -Kelsch, 
Marilyn- 

2023 Lot 4, Block 1, Sonnet 
Hgts sub 3rd replat 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$302,800 $202,800 

Donald & Judy 
Miller 

2023 Block 1, Brandon Heights, 
Auditors Lot C of part of 
lot 3 Brandon Heights 
Condominiums Three 
unit 204 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$185,900 $92,950 

Sandra L Tabor 2023 Block 8, McKenzie's, Lot 7 
& east 15' of lot 8 & west 
30' of VAC Thompson St 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$273,000 $173,000 

Marian Scheck 2023 Lot 7, Block 20, Rep B20 
Morningside Hgts 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$185,800 $0 

Sydney Seidel 2023 Lot 36A, Block 1, 
Evergreen Ridge Addn 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$149,000 $0 

Duane C & Agnes 
P Aman 

2023 Lots 3-4, Block 48, 
Flannery & Wetherby 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$210,500 $10,500 

Eugene Masse 2023 10 less East 2.5', Block 4, 
Prairie Hills 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$306,200 $206,200 

Judy D Plummer 2023 Lot 11 & East 8' of Lot 12 
& Lot B of Lot 10 and Lot 
E of Lot 10, Block 5, 
Sleepy Hollow Heights 
3rd 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$392,500 $192,500 

Elbert & Bertha 
Wilson 

2023 Lot 6, Block 1, Calgary 
Addition 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$253,100 $153,100 

Edward & Brigeta 
Wuitschick 

2023 West 100' of Lots 15-16, 
Block 35, Flannery & 
Wetherby 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$143,300 $0 

Allen & Joann 
Blotske 

2023 Lot A of Lot 1, Block 1, 
Blotske Subdivision 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$387,400 $187,400 

Richard & Rita 
Roller 

2023 Lot 11, Block 4, Falconer 
Estates 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$336,500 $236,500 

Kenneth & Diane 
Gebhardt 

2023 Lot 7A, Block 1, Sandy 
Hills Est 3rd 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$210,800 $110,800 

Randy Bowman 2022 S1/2 S1/2 SW1/4 Section 
12 Township 140 Range 
81 W 

Qualifies for 
Farm Res. 
Exemption 

$435,300 $12,600 



 

Randy Bowman 2023 S1/2 S1/2 SW1/4 Section 
12 Township 140 Range 
81 W 

Qualifies for 
Farm Res. 
Exemption 

$476,800 $13,400 

Rick & Janice Roll 2023 1998 Friendship 28' x 66', 
ser# MY98-17991A 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$61,095 $30,547 

Wesley & Georgia 
Uttke 

2023 Lot 8, Block 4, Falconer 
Estates 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$327,700 $227,700 

Gwyneth Binder 2023 S 495' of SW1/4 SW1/4, S 
825' of SE1/4 SW 1/4 15-
139-77 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$93,400 $0 

Lloyd A & Brenda 
L Bosch 

2023 Lot 11, Block 1, Falconer 
Est Rplt B1 L4-8 

100% Disabled 
Veteran 

$346,600 $166,600 

Josiah Smith 2023 Lot 2, Block 1, Dunn 
Lincoln Twp 

100% Disabled 
Veteran 

$540,500 $360,500 

Shinley M 
Buchholz 

2023 Shannon Ridge 4th, Block 
3, Lots 1-2 East Ridge 
Condominiums Unit 9 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$217,000 $17,000 

Alice Gramlow 2023 Southwood Terrace 2nd 
Rep, Block 24, Lots 1-6 
Cottonwood Estates 
Condominium Unit D-E 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$188,500 $94,250 

Lawrence C & 
Sharon K Zacher 

2023 Lot 9, Block 11, Riverview 50% Homestead 
Credit 

$274,400 $174,400 

Jerome R & 
Valerie J Delzer 

2023 Lot 10, Block 1, Highland 
Acres 2nd 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$496,400 $396,400 

Eugenia Eckert 2023 Lincoln, Block 7, Beg pt 
60' W of NE cor S 177' W 
60' N 177' E 60' to beg 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$194,000 $0 

Ileen Enzminger 2023 Lot 1, Block 4, Sattler's 
Sunrise 9th 

100% 
Homestead 
Credit 

$404,700 $204,700 

Goll, Troy D ET AL 
-Goll, Leo E & 
Audre G- 

2023 Lot 10, Block 19, Meadow 
Valley 4th 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$241,300 $141,300 

Charles Gullicks 2023 Register's 2nd, Block 7, W 
5' of Lot 7' & Lot 8 less W 
10' 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$221,600 $121,600 

Shanon L Senne 2023 Lot 4, Block 3, Centennial 
Park 4th 

50% Homestead 
Credit 

$266,000 $166,000 

 



 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Commissioner Woodcox to approve the Larry & Kathlyn Wall (3), Jason & 
Danielle Levey (2), Zachariah D. & Ashley M. Hay, Justin Paul Williams, Ryan Hoerner, Kohl’s Illinois, Inc., 
Rainmaker Properties LLC, Ralph Messer (4), Ryan Sabin (2), Troy & Jennifer Marchus, Neil & Heather 
Leier, Wade & Kayla Teneyck, Joseph J. & Carol T. Kuntz, 100 West Main Limited Partnership, Gladys & 
Greg R. Grube, Greg Schlosser & Lauri Hanson, John Karolewics & Caren Stewart, Kaye Anderson, 
Michael & Pamela Smith, Joseph E. Sr. & Kathryn Tibor, Judith A. Schneider, Joanne Monson, Charles W. 
& Laura M. Gitter, David Breding, Andrew W. & Darlene Weigel, Shirley & Cleon Hoggarth, Alma Nelson, 
Adam M. & Jenene K. Leintz, Diordan T. McLean, Aaron & Devnne Schantz, Craig D. & Lynn A. Grassel, 
Michael K. & Sarah M. Sayler, Karen Stolt, Bill Heckelsmiller, James J. & Cynthia A. Bechtold, Irene Miller, 
Ronald S. Perry, James & Dorothy Kratovil, Diane & Allen Dockter, James A. & Violet S. Ryckman, Ella 
Peightal Family Trust, Victoria L. Carvell, William R. & Kerry A. Horton, Florence Baelser, Elizabeth Walth, 
Ila K. Allison, Marilyn Kelsch, Donald & Judy Miller, Sandra L. Tabor, Marian Scheck, Sydney Seidel, Duane 
C. & Agnes P. Aman, Eugene Masse, Judy D. Plummer, Elbert & Bertha Wilson, Edward & Brigeta 
Wuitschick, Allen & Joann Blotske, Richard & Rita Roller, Kenneth & Diane Gebhardt, Randy Bowman (2), 
Rick & Janice Roll, Wesley & Georgia Uttke, Gwyneth Binder, Lloyd A. & Brenda L. Bosch, Josiah Smith, 
Shinley M. Buchholz, Alice Gramlow, Lawrence C. & Sharon K. Zacher, Jerome R. & Valerie J. Delzer, 
Eugenia Eckert, Ileen Enzminger, Leo E. & Audre G. Goll, Charles Gullicks, and Shanon L. Senne 
abatements plus the remainder of the consent agenda in its entirety. All members present voted “AYE”. 
Motion carried.  
 
County Planner Mitch Flanagan presented a request to approve the Braunagel Final Subdivision Plat. The 
plat went through seven plat revisions to meet Article 33 subdivision regulations. Motion by Comm. Munson, 
2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Mr. Flanagan then 
presented a request to approve the Joint Powers Agreement between Apple Creek Township and Burleigh 
County. This agreement now included specific standards for floodplain regulations. Three townships were 
not interested in this agreement. Chairman Bitner stated that this was significant because it left residents in 
these townships outside of flood insurance and local assistance that is related to floods. Chair Bitner 
suggested townships contact Mr. Flanagan regarding flood plain management issues because it could have 
a significant impact on township residents. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve 
the Joint Powers Agreement between Apple Creek Township and Burleigh County. All members present 
voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 
 
County Engineer Marcus Hall presented a petition to vacate a section line in Riverside Subdivision and hold 
a public hearing. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Schwab to set the public hearing date for 
February 5th, 2024 at 5pm to review discontinuing the section line and ascertain any damages that are 
caused by this action. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Mr. Hall then presented a request 
to advertise for bids for painted pavement markings, crushing of gravel, township gravel hauling, dust 
control, chip seal projects and a grazing lease. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Schwab to 
approve this request. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Mr. Hall presented a request to 
advertise for bids for the County Highway 10 roadway mill and overlay project (from 197th Street NE to 236th 
Street NE). Mr. Hall estimated this would cost $1.2 million and stated that 100% of American Rescue Plan 
money (allocated for 66th St. overlay project) would be used for the construction of this project. Motion by 
Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve this request. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion 
carried. Mr. Hall then presented a request for authorization to seek construction engineering service 
proposals for the mill and overlay of County Highway 10 project. Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. 
Munson to approve. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Mr. Hall then presented a request to 
approve the 2024 Burleigh County Project Priority List and authorize the department to move forward with 



 

those projects. Chairman Bitner requested to table this item until the next meeting, so the board had time to 
look at the list. Mr. Hall presented a two-part Developer Waiver request from Duane Small to waive the 
pavement policy to allow the proposed plat to be approved and to waive the paving requirements “paving of 
all internal roadways and adjacent section line roads” listed in the pavement policy in conjunction with the 
approval of the Peaceful View Subdivision. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve. 
All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried.   
 
Comm. Munson presented a discussion on the Equine and Ag Center. He apologized to the commission 
regarding some language that was incorrect in a document that he previously sent to the commissioners and 
wished to thank Chair Bitner for pointing that out to him. The information was discussed but was never in a 
motion. In looking through several meetings and motions that were previously approved, he saw nothing that 
needed to be adjusted in any motion or in the minutes. 
 
Elections Coordinator Lisa Hart presented a discussion regarding a precinct split. She stated that since the 
last election there was an annexation to the City of Bismarck in District 30 with the Paradise Valley 
Subdivision. In consultation with the Secretary of State’s Office, it doesn’t affect any precinct boundaries but 
does create a precinct split within precinct 3001. She added that this action required no commission 
approval but wanted the commission to be aware that the split was created so that when homes are built in 
this area, the correct ballot style will be reflected on their ballot.   
 
Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski brought an update on interest earnings and unused department funds that 
the commission requested from the last meeting. The interest earned on the Missouri Valley Complex funds 
was $184,735; interest earned on ARPA funds was $409,218; and interest earned on the General Fund was 
$1,454,458. Comm. Bitner then stated that this provided the answer for how to pay for the gravel request 
that Mr. Hall had at the last meeting. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Schwab/Bakken to approve 1/3 of the 
interest earned from each of those funds to pay for the Highway Department’s gravel (request totaling 
$347,000) contingent on the results of Mr. Hall verifying whether interest on the ARPA Fund can be used for 
that. Commissioners Munson, Bakken and Chair Bitner voted “AYE”. Commissioners Woodcox and Schwab 
voted “NAY”. Motion carried. Mr. Splonskowski gave updates on the balance of unused salaries and fringe 
benefits. He stated that in 2019 the unused amount was $1,036,765, $1,663,000 in 2020, $1,849,900 in 
2021, $2,573,318 in 2022, and in 2023 the balance remaining was $4,108,965. Since these were not in the 
packets Mr. Splonskowski will send it to the commissioners in an email. Chairman Bitner requested that he 
would like to see all the totals in the whole county in addition to the salaries and fringe benefits that are 
remaining which Mr. Splonskowski stated he will also send by email. Mr. Splonskowski then presented more 
auxiliary board applications. He stated that since Human Services Zone Director Chelsea Flory lives in 
Morton County, she is not eligible to be on the Housing Authority. Arlene Olson is now the only applicant for 
Housing Authority. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Schwab to rescind the appointment of Chelsea 
Flory. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox 
to appoint Arlene Olson to the Housing Authority. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Comm. 
Schwab requested that the commission acting as the Weed Board meet for the next meeting and he will add 
that to the agenda. He expressed concerns with the recent editorial on the Weed Board in the Bismarck 
Tribune regarding not being transparent. Comm. Schwab stated that he has done everything he can to be as 
transparent as possible. He added he has full confidence in the Weed Officer they plan to hire and Chairman 
Bitner stated that the Weed Officer’s contact information will be made public once he is officially hired. There 
was consensus on the board to wait on the appointment of applicants to the Weed Board. Auditor 
Splonskowski presented the Rod Backman Weed bill that has been outstanding for some time. Mr. Backman 
wondered how much he should be paying. Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Munson to accept the 



 

cost sharing price of $135.02. Per the advice of State’s Attorney Julie Lawyer, there needed to be notice of a 
Weed Board meeting with the commission acting as the Weed Board on the agenda to do this, so 
recommended this happen at the next meeting to make a motion on this bill. 
 
The commission concluded by wishing Comm. Schwab a very happy birthday. 
 
Meeting Adjourned. 
 
____________________________________                            ________________________________ 
Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor/Treasurer                            Brian Bitner, Chairman  



The following list of abatements and settlement of taxes is forwarded for action to the Burleigh County Commission: 

Abate # Owner Tax Year Legal Description Credit Type Current MV Reduced MV

23-411
Stephens Property 
Apartments LLC 2023

West 100' of Lot 1, Block 49, Northern 
Pacific 2nd

Error in property 
description $240,000 $184,300

23-412
Stephens Property 
Apartments LLC 2023

Lots 31-32 less west 99', Block 63, 
McKenzie & Coffin's

Error in property 
description $158,600 $127,600

23-413
Stephens Property 
Apartments LLC 2023

Lot 18, & S 15' of Lot 19, Flannery & 
Wetherby

Error in property 
description $256,200 $174,600

23-414
Stephens Property 
Apartments LLC 2023 Lots 27-28, Block 22, Flannery & Wetherby

Error in property 
description $223,200 $158,500

23-415
Stephens Property 
Apartments LLC 2023 Lots 16-18, Block 46, Flannery & Wetherby

Error in property 
description $202,300 $179,000

23-418 CD Gemini Properties LLC 2023

Lot 1A less Lot 1C of Lot 1A of Lot 1 and 
Lots 10 & 11, Block 12, Wachter's 
subdivision & replat of part of block 10 
Eastdale addn

Error in property 
description $1,962,600 $1,859,900

23-426 Theresa A Simon 2023 Lot 24, Block 2, Sattler's Sunrise 4th
Error in property 

description $367,300 $339,200

23-433 Brian Nelson 2023 Lots 7-8, Block 93, McKenzie & Coffin's 100% Disabled Veteran $200,100 $20,100

23-434 Joshua & Alison Ternes 2023 Lots 20-21, Block 78, McKenzie & Coffin's
Error in property 

description $287,700 $253,100

23-442 Shirley M Buchholz 2023
Lots 1-2 East Ridge Condominiums Unit 9, 
Block 3, Shannon Valley 4th 100% Homestead Credit $217,000 $37,000

23-448
Park District of the City of 
Bismarck 2023

Country West V, Block 2, Lot 4 & lot 3 less 
that part taken for replat part Country 
West V and less tract 1722 & North 7' Vac Exempt from taxation $300 $0

23-449
Park District of the City of 
Bismarck 2023

Country West V, Block 2, Lot 5 & north 7' 
VAC R/W Adj Exempt from taxation $200 $0

23-450
Park District of the City of 
Bismarck 2023

Country West V, Block 3, Lot 2 less that 
part taken for replat part Country West V 
& south 7' VAC R/W Adj Exempt from taxation $200 $0



23-451
Park District of the City of 
Bismarck 2023

Country West V, Block 3, Lot 3 & south 7' 
VAC R/W Adj Exempt from taxation $300 $0

23-452
Park District of the City of 
Bismarck 2023

Country West V, Block 3, Lot 4 & south 7' 
VAC R/W Adj Exempt from taxation $200 $0

23-453
Park District of the City of 
Bismarck 2023

Tyler's Western Village, Block 3, pt L 22 beg 
at NW cor; SELY along N Line of LT 79.53'; 
SWLY 112.82' to WLY Line of LT; N Exempt from taxation $500 $0

23-454
Park District of the City of 
Bismarck 2023

Tyler's Western Village, Block 3, pt L 23 beg 
at SW cor; NLY along W line 98.69' to most 
WLY Cor of lot; SELY 155.35'; SWL Exempt from taxation $1,000 $0

24-001 Adam J Koch 2023 Lot 9, Block 34, Northern Pacific 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $178,000 $89,000

24-002 Jolene Stewart 2023

Block 1, Replat North Hills 4th, Tract A & 
an undiv interest in L.31 Common Area 
Knoll Wood Condominium Central 
Association Unit 3 100% Homestead Credit $266,700 $66,700

24-003 Wayne & Gladys Trottier 2023 Lot 7B, Block 4, K & L's 2nd Addition 100% Homestead Credit $352,400 $152,400

24-004 Wallace & Diane Mertz 2023
Lot 1 less Parcel No.1-1 for ST R/W, Block 
1, Mertz First Addition 50% Homestead Credit $596,200 $496,200

24-005 Jenell Loftesnes 2023 Lot 17 less South 6', Block 3, Stein's 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $262,900 $162,900

24-007
Lawrence & Alice 
Duchscherer 2023 Lots 3-4, Block 10, Flannery & Wetherby 100% Homestead Credit $216,400 $116,400

24-008 Cynthia Jacquart 2023
Eastview, Block 2, 516A of Lot 22 less S50' 
of W22' of said L22 50% Homestead Credit $193,000 $96,500

24-009 John W Kelsch 2023 East 75' of Lots 17-20, Block 23, Fisher 100% Homestead Credit $242,000 $42,000

24-010
Elayne M Lindquist 
Revocable Trust 2023

Lot 13, Block 1, Heritage Park Addition 1st 
Replat 50% Homestead Credit $403,700 $303,700



24-012 Eileen P Krumm 2023 Lot 23, Block 2, Eagle Crest 100% Homestead Credit $565,600 $365,600

24-013 David J & Agnes Volk 2023

Pebble Creek 8th, Block 2, Lots 4,6,8,10, 
Blk 1, Pebble Creek 8th RPT & Lot 15 less 
WLY 148' of SLY 180', Blk 2, Pebble Creek 
8th Arrow Head Ranch Unit 3 Bldg 3118 50% Homestead Credit $300,900 $200,900

24-014
James G & Cynthia A 
Vollmer 2023 Lot 6, Block 2, Indian Hills 50% Homestead Credit $267,100 $167,100

24-015 Jefferie Ehman 2023

Pebble Creek 8th, Block 2, Lots 4,6,8,10, 
Blk 1, Pebble Creek 8th RPT & Lot 15 less 
WLY 148' of SLY 180', Blk 2, Pebble Creek 
8th Arrow Head Ranch Unit 4 Bldg 3112 50% Homestead Credit $300,900 $200,900

24-016 Debra Mills 2023
Replat Tibesar's 1st Sub, Block 14, Lot 19 & 
E 22' of Lot 18 50% Homestead Credit $399,800 $299,800

24-018 Kevin Brennan 2023 Lot 5, Block 3, Briardale II 50% Homestead Credit $298,300 $198,300

24-019
Kenneth F & Alvinia 
Buchholz 2023 Lot 5, Block 20, Meadow Valley 4th 50% Homestead Credit $236,200 $136,200

24-020
Daniel & Sharon 
Clausnitzer 2023 Eastview, Block 3, Lot 9 & N 12' of Lot 8 50% Homestead Credit $315,500 $215,500

24-021 Jenette Leblang 2023 Lot 10, Block 2, Promontory Point 100% Homestead Credit $508,400 $308,400

24-022 Jolene Stewart 2022

Block 1, Replat North Hills 4th, Tract A & 
an undiv interest in L.31 Common Area 
Knoll Wood Condominium Central 
Association Unit 3 20% Homestead Credit $242,400 $217,400

24-023 Ralph & Naida Feland 2023 Lot 4, Block 1, Edgewood Village 5th 100% Homestead Credit $383,600 $183,600

24-029 Kelly & Candice Bouche 2023

Pt S1/2SE1/4 beg @ Pt 72 rods W if SE cor 
then N 20 rods, W 16 rods, S 20 rods, E 16 
rods to POB 100% Homestead Credit $76,500 $0



24-030
Gary & Alvina 
Allmendinger 2023

Eastview, Block 3, S6' of Lot 5 & N14' of Lot 
4, Eastview Townhouses Unit 13 Tract J 50% Homestead Credit $139,700 $69,850

24-031 Jean Ellefson 2023
Tatley Meadows V, Block 2, Part of Lot 4 
Pheasant Run Condominiums Unit 3068 50% Homestead Credit $164,600 $82,300

24-032
Richard & Julene 
Wasness 2023 Lot 7, Block 1, Highland Acres 50% Homestead Credit $247,400 $147,400

24-033
Richard Braun & Patricia 
Erling 2023

West 50' of Lots 1-2, Block 20, Northern 
Pacific 100% Homestead Credit $227,300 $27,300

24-034 Dan Ensz 2023
Flannery & Wetherby, Block 41, Lot 15 less 
W 20' for alley 100% Homestead Credit $167,100 $0

24-035 Redginald & Susan Finck 2023 Lot 7, Block 10, Riverview 50% Homestead Credit $256,900 $156,900

24-036 Rhonda & Steven Haegele 2023 Lots 7-8, Block 11, Fisher 100% Homestead Credit $217,500 $17,500

24-037 Sylvia J Brown 2023 Lots 11-12, Block 20, Fisher 50% Homestead Credit $253,700 $153,700

24-038 Jerome & Barbara Frison 2023 Lot 7, Block 10, Meadow Valley 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $221,400 $121,400

24-039
Gary W & Dorene E 
Gaasland 2023

Block 12, Lincoln, Beg 105' N of SE cor W 
165' N 65' E 165' S 65' to beg 50% Homestead Credit $338,600 $238,600

24-040 Carol A Hattel 2023 Lot 8, Block 3, Register's 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $210,900 $110,900

24-041 Carmen Husebye 2023

Block 4, East Hills Addition Replat, Lot 8 
Baumgartner's Sharloh Loop 
Condominiums Unit 7 Building 1401 50% Homestead Credit $181,100 $90,550

24-042
Patricia Kennedy C/O 
Patricia Hanson 2023 Lot 41, Block 10, Highland Acres 50% Homestead Credit $277,400 $177,400

24-043 Beverly Larson 2023
Block 3, North Hills 15th, Lot 3 626 Nelson 
Dr Condominium Association Unit 4 50% Homestead Credit $254,900 $154,900



24-044
Robert P Jr & Leighann 
Gregoire 2023 Lot 5, Block 2, Wachter's 7th 50% Homestead Credit $294,900 $194,900

24-045 Michael L Miller 2023 Lot 12, Block 4, Haycreek Meadows 50% Homestead Credit $308,800 $208,800

24-046 Robert L Wetsch 2023 Lot 3, Block 19, Casey's 4th 100% Homestead Credit $187,800 $0

24-053
Ronnie J & Kathy A 
Blegler 2023 SE1/4 - 295.16' x 295.16 50% Homestead Credit $217,900 $117,900

24-054 Gary T Nagel 2023 S 50' of Lots 7-12, Block 17, McKenzie's 50% Homestead Credit $227,500 $127,500

24-055 Viola Anderson 2023
Lot 19B of Lot 19 + Lot 20, Block 1, 
Huntington Cottages 1st Addition 50% Homestead Credit $367,500 $267,500

24-056 Susan Beth Elliot 2023 Lot 11, Block 14, Nagel's 4th 100% Homestead Credit $300,200 $233,533

24-057
Thomas & Cynthia 
Anderst 2023 Lot 9A, part of Lots 3-5, Block 4, Stein's 5th 50% Homestead Credit $226,300 $126,300

24-058
Gregory & Deborah 
Hanson 2023 Lot 8, Block 15, Register's 2nd Addition 50% Homestead Credit $205,800 $105,800

24-059
Dean A & Wanda L 
Meland 2023 Lot 6, Block 22, Wachter's 3rd 100% Homestead Credit $321,800 $121,800

24-060 Jimmy & Denise Brorby 2023 Lot 10, Block 3, The Ranch 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $477,100 $377,100

24-062 Jeff & Charlotte Kurtz 2023
Grande Prairie Estates Second, Twn-139, 
Rng-80, Blk-09 50% Homestead Credit $337,500 $237,500

24-063 Alan Houn 2023 Lots 1-9, Block 1, Menoken Meadows 100% Homestead Credit $16,800 $0

24-064 Sandra A Schell 2023

Lots 1-2 Original Townsite Condominiums 
Unit 2 & Garage Unit 2, Block 61, Original 
Plat 100% Homestead Credit $87,200 $0

24-065 Margaret E Bahn 2023
RPT PT B3 Sleepy Hollow HT, Block 3, Lot 1, 
1627 N 33rd St Condominiums Unit 2 100% Homestead Credit $261,100 $61,100



24-066 Larry & Carol Crabbe 2023
RT L10 B1 North Hills 1st, Block 1, Lot 2 
Century Park Condominiums Unit II 100% Homestead Credit $211,200 $11,200

24-067 Larry & Neva Lang 2023 Lot 15, Block 27, Stein's 4th 50% Homestead Credit $317,200 $217,200

24-068 Kenn Jay Pedersen 2023 Lot 14, Block 12, Stein's 3rd 100% Homestead Credit $311,100 $111,100

24-069
Joseph G & Meredith L 
Gross 2023

Block 2, Fisher, E 70' of Lots 13-15 & W 40' 
of S 10' of Lot 8 & W 40' of Lots 9-12 100% Homestead Credit $264,600 $64,600

































lisah
Highlight

lisah
Highlight



ITEM 

# 8 



Brian Bitner

Chair

Steve Bakken

Vice Chair
Wayne Munson Steve Schwab Jerry Woodcox

Extension
Burleigh/Morton Detention 

Center Board

Highway Department County Library

Metropolitan Planning 

Organization
Recorder

Weed Board Sheriff's Office

State's Attorney

Auditor/Treasurer/ Tax 
Equalization

Finance

Building/Planning/Zoning

Buildings, Grounds & Abandoned 

Cemeteries

Emergency Management

Human Resources

Bismarck-Burleigh Joint 
Committee

Central Dakota Communications 

Center (911)

Council on Aging/Senior Adults 

Program

Government Coordination & 

Community Involvement: 

Intergovernment Committee

Human Service Zone 

(Social Services)

Public Health

Superintendent of Schools

Building/Planning/Zoning

Burleigh/Morton Detention 

Center Board

County Parks

Government Coordination & 

Community Involvement: Bismarck 

Mandan Chamber EDC

Home Rule Charter

Missouri Valley Complex

Veterans Services
Water Resource Board

1/3/2024

Burleigh County Commission - 2024  Portfolios

Each Commissioner shall periodically submit recommendations to the Board on policies and decisions relative to their 

portfolios assignments for final approval by the full Board of County Commissioners.



ITEM 

# 9 



PUBLIC 
HEARING 





















BURLEIGH COUNTY 
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 

8100 43RD AVENUE NE 
BISMARCK, ND 58503 

701-204-7748
   FAX 701-204-7749 

   www.burleighco.com 

Request for County Board Action 

DATE: January 3, 2024 

TO: Mark Splonskowski 
County Auditor 

FROM: Marcus J. Hall 
County Engineer 

RE: Burleigh County Proposed Project Priority List 

Please place the following item on the next Burleigh County Board agenda. 

ACTION REQUESTED: 
Approve the 2024 Burleigh County Project Priority List 

BACKGROUND: 
In the past, the Highway Department has presented to the County Board a proposed list 
of construction projects for the coming year.  The list is developed from past years’ 
projects that have not been completed, and new projects that have come to our 
attention because of normal wear and tear on the existing system or developments that 
create new needs.  (Project List will be distributed at the Board Meeting.)   In addition 
to the 2024 projects, the Department is presenting the yearly construction program for 
the next 3 years, an Unfunded Project List and a Gravel Road Construction Project List.  
These lists are being presented in order to help establish the Highway Department’s 
direction for long-range transportation planning in the County.   

It is the intent of the Department to complete all of the projects on the 2024 list in the 
coming year.  However, we may not complete all of the 2024 projects.  Unfortunately, 
events and problems beyond our control will occur during the year, which may require 
us to temporarily skip a project and work on projects lower on the priority list.  It is not 
the intent of the Department to minimize the Board’s wishes; it is more the Department’s 
intent to maximize the total number of projects we can complete in 2024. 



RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Burleigh County Board adopt the attached proposed 
resolution. 

PROPOSED RESOLUTION: 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED:  That the Burleigh County Board adopts the 
attached 2024 Burleigh County Project Priority List, and authorizes the Highway 
Department to allocate resources to design, acquire right of way and construct the 
prioritized projects under the North Dakota Century Code and Burleigh County policies. 



ITEM 

# 10 



ITEM 

# 11 





 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 12 



BURLEIGH - MORTON COUNTY COMMISSION 

DETENTION REPORT January 2024 

1. December Housing Report:

a. Average Daily Population (ADP) 241

b. Total Bookings:  512 or 17 per day average.

2. Breakdown of Inmate Days:

a. Bismarck inmate days:

425 nights 14 per night $27,753 billed 

b. Mandan inmate days:

38 nights 1 per night $2,211 billed 

c. U.S. Marshall/Bureau of Prisons:

838 nights 27 per night $96,370 billed 

d. Others (Counties/Cities):

213 nights 7 per night $9,750 billed 

e. Burleigh/ Morton Average per night:

6,962 nights 225 per night 

3. Total billed :   $135,566 Year:  $1,973,428 

4. Burleigh County alternatives to jail program (24/7Program): 217 Participants
- 48 on the drug patch.
- 87 on the ankle bracelet.
- 48 on twice a day breath tests.
- 34 people testing in other counties.
- 0 Remote Breath Testing



ITEM 

# 13 



Request for County Board Action 

DATE: January 17, 2024 

TO: County Commission 

FROM: Auditor/Treasurer Mark Splonskowski 

RE: 2024 election status update. 

Please place the following item on the next Burleigh County Board agenda. 

BACKGROUND: 
An update to the commission was requested to be presented by Chairman Bitner. Specifically, about 
poll workers, and the required number of staff to administer the election.  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Receive update on the status of the 2024 election. 



ITEM 

# 14 



1-8-24

Request to the Burleigh County Commission: 

Ac�on requested by mo�on: 

To establish  a “Fair Board” as a management, complex opera�on, and development 
oversight commitee responsible to the Burleigh County Commission for the Missouri Valley 
Complex. 

Discussion: 
The proposed establishment of a “Fair Board”  would be to  formally engage 

representa�ves of the organiza�ons currently opera�ng by lease, facility ownership and with 
present development interest at the Missouri Valley Complex for the purpose of complex 
management and programming, site and facility improvements, and opera�ons.  

The present par�es include: Buckstop Junc�on, Motor Cross, County Extension/4H, 
HS/JR High Rodeo Club, Equestrian and Ag Center, Stock Car Club and Bismarck Park District. 

In addi�on, the “Fair Board” would include 2-or-4- ci�zen members for a 9-or-11-
member management Board.  

The “Fair Board” would also include one non-vo�ng liaison member from the Burleigh 
County Commission and Bismarck Park Board.  

The Fair Board may establish commitees to develop projects and events in the interest 
of the  Missouri Valley Complex ,Burleigh County Commission, and community. 

The “Fair Board” would be tasked with: 
The development of and establishment of management and broad opera�ng policies, 
planning, annual budget, and development plans for the Missouri Valley Complex within 
the policies of the Burleigh County Commission. 
To ensure the organiza�ons opera�ng on the complex and those events held at the 
complex operate within the policies and interest of the Complex and Burleigh County 
Commission. 
The development of an annual complex opera�ng plan and budget for presenta�on to 
the County Commission to include programming schedule and event development.  
To provide oversight of complex planning and project review, engage opera�ng and 
management services and professional services. 
To support the events and efforts of the membership at the Complex. 
To provide oversite and review of leases and easements to include reviews and make 
recommenda�ons to County Commission. 
To provide oversite of complex opera�on and management leases, event contracts and 
opera�ons compliance. 
To seek outside funding sources, grants and provide fundraising support individually and 
jointly. 
To provide member review of project development. 



1-8-24

To assist in the review and development of new programs, events, fairs, and fes�vals at 
the complex, and,  
To operate within nonprofit status and be afforded access to resources available through 
the Burleigh County Commission.   
To meet at a minimum bi-monthly or at the call of the Chair with all mee�ng minutes 
recorded. 
To hold all mee�ngs at the Tom Baker Room in the interest of the public and broadcast 
all mee�ngs on Dakota Media Access TV. 

Note: 

The mo�on is to establish a “Fair Board” as a new en�ty (opera�ng commitee) under the 
Burleigh County Commission.  

The previous “Fair Associa�on” was established as an autonomous and independently opera�ng 
incorporated nonprofit organiza�on.  

The proposed Fair Board would be responsible to and accountable to the Burleigh County 
Commission. 



CHAPTER 11-39
AGRICULTURE FAIR ASSOCIATIONS

11-39-01. County fair association organization as nonprofit corporation.
A county fair  association must be organized under the nonprofit  corporation laws of this

state. In addition to the powers and duties of nonprofit corporations under the laws of this state, 
a county fair association has the powers and duties specified in this chapter.

11-39-02. Fair association - County funding.
1. A fair association may be organized in any county. The officers and directors must be

residents of the county or, if the association is to conduct a multicounty fair, residents
of one of the participating counties. The association may make written application to
the board of county commissioners for a grant to aid in the erection of buildings and
other improvements suitable to conduct the fair and to pay premiums and expenses
that may be awarded on fair exhibits. An application must include evidence that the
association is incorporated in this state as a nonprofit  corporation,  the names and
places of residence of all its officers and directors, and evidence of ownership or right
to use of sufficient real property in the county to conduct the fair.

2. The board of county commissioners may not provide county funding or official county
fair  authorization  under  this  chapter  to  more  than  one  fair  association  or  to  any
association organized for profit.

3. If the board of county commissioners is satisfied the statements in the application are
true and the association intends in good faith to annually hold a fair within the county
for the exhibition of agricultural, livestock, horticultural, mining, mechanical, industrial,
and manufactured products of the county, and of those articles as are usually exhibited
at  fairs,  and other public  displays of  human art,  industry,  and skill,  the board may
provide the association official  county fair  authorization and funding from revenues
derived from the county general fund levy authority.  If  the funding is approved, the
county treasurer shall pay to the secretary of the association, by the following July
thirty-first, the amount of funding approved and shall take the receipt of the association
for the payment.

4. Any  amount  received  by  the  county  fair  association  must  be  deposited  by  the
secretary of the association in a special fund.

5. To promote holding a county fair, the board of county commissioners may purchase or
lease in the name of the county not to exceed two hundred forty acres [97.12 hectares]
of real estate and construct buildings and improvements for the conduct of a county
fair. The board of county commissioners may issue bonds in the name of the county if
approved by electors of the county in accordance with sections 21-03-06 and 21-03-07
to purchase not to exceed two hundred forty acres [97.12 hectares], of real estate and
construct buildings and improvements for the conduct of a county fair.

6. Upon the board's own motion, the board of county commissioners may continue to
provide funding under this section after the first year's grant of aid.

7. The authority of this section may be used by a county to join in formation and funding
of a multicounty fair association under terms of an agreement with one or more other
counties.

11-39-03. County fair association funding to be submitted to vote.
If the board of county commissioners has voted and ordered county general fund funding for

a fair association and a petition is addressed to the board and filed with the county auditor, 
asking the discontinuance of the funding and containing the signatures of qualified electors of 
the county in a number equal to twenty percent or more of the total vote cast in the county at the 
last preceding general election, the board shall submit to the qualified electors of the county at 
the next succeeding general election the question of whether funding is to be continued. The 
ballot must be in the following form:

Shall the board of county commissioners continue the annual Yes ☐

Page No. 1



funding in aid of a county fair? No ☐
If a majority of all the ballots cast on the question at the election is in favor of discontinuing the 
funding,  the board of  county commissioners may not  thereafter  provide funding in  aid  of  a 
county fair under this chapter until the question of resuming the annual funding is approved by a 
vote of the qualified electors of the county. The ballot must be in the following form:

Shall the board of county commissioners resume the annual Yes ☐
funding in aid of a county fair? No ☐

If a majority of the ballots cast on the question at the election is in favor of resuming the funding, 
the  board  of  county  commissioners  shall  resume  the  annual  funding  subject  to  the  other 
provisions of this chapter.

11-39-04. County fair authorization - Forfeiture.
Any county fair association that fails to hold a county fair for ten consecutive years forfeits

its official authorization. After a forfeiture, another fair association may organize within a county 
and apply, or the forfeiting organization may reapply, to the board of county commissioners for 
official county fair authorization and aid under this chapter.

11-39-05. Disposition of property.
The board of county commissioners may sell property used for county fair purposes and

held in the name of the county upon terms and conditions set by the board. The proceeds of 
such sale must be placed in the county general fund.

If the county fair association fails to hold a fair within the county for two consecutive years, 
the board of county commissioners may direct that any county property on hand be sold and the 
proceeds of the sale and any unexpended balance in the county fair fund be transferred to the 
county general fund.

11-39-06. County funding to cease when fair not held - Misappropriation of funds.
The  board  of  county  commissioners  shall  refuse  to  provide  funding  for  a  county  fair

association that failed to hold a fair  within the county in any year for which it  has received 
funding from the county. In such a case, the board of county commissioners shall inquire into 
the disposition of moneys paid by the county to the association after its last annual report, and if 
there has been any misappropriation it shall institute proceedings at once to recover the sum 
misappropriated.  For  any  such  misappropriation,  the  officers,  trustees,  or  directors  of  the 
association shall be liable personally to the county.

11-39-07. Power to make regulations governing premises.
Fair associations may make rules, regulations, and provisions necessary and proper for the

government, management, and control of the premises used by them for the holding of fairs and 
expositions and for the regulation of the use of the premises.

11-39-08. Director's civil immunity.
The individual members of the board of directors of any fair association are immune from

civil liability for any act or omission relating to service as a director for the negligence of any 
person,  firm,  corporation,  or  limited  liability  company  staging  any  show,  race,  or  other 
amusement at any county or municipal fair and are immune from civil liability for any negligence 
of any person employed by the board of directors or the association conducting such fair.

11-39-09. Treasurer to give bond - Duty of officers and directors.
The  officers  and  directors  of  any  fair  association  shall  require  the  treasurer  of  the

association to give a sufficient bond to those officers and directors, conditioned for the faithful 
keeping of that money as may come into the treasurer's hands as the treasurer. The treasurer 
may not receive funds of a fair association until the treasurer is properly bonded.

Page No. 2



11-39-10. Nonliability of state for debts - Exception.
The state is not liable for any of the debts or liabilities of a fair association except to the

extent appropriations are made for that purpose by the legislative assembly.

Page No. 3



ITEM 

# 15 


	January 17th  2024
	County Weed Board
	Rod Backman Weed bill
	County Commission
	January 3rd, 2024 Minutes
	Abatement letter January 17, 2024
	Sheet1

	Consent Depositories
	Consent Prairie rose Raffle
	Consent 2nd access permit request
	Check replacement
	Consent Republican Raffle
	#8
	2024 Portfolios
	#9
	Public Hearing
	Hall  Public Hearing Section line vacation request
	Hall Project Priority List 2024
	#10
	#11
	Burleigh County-UMary MOU - Signed by UMary
	#12
	Sheriff Leben quarterly report
	#13
	Bitner Election status
	#14
	Munson Missouri Valley Complex -Fair Board Proposal 1-2-24
	#15
	Munson Agricultural Fair Associations
	Chapter 11‑39
		11‑39‑01. County fair association organization as nonprofit corporation.
		11‑39‑02. Fair association ‑ County funding.
		11‑39‑03. County fair association funding to be submitted to vote.
		11‑39‑04. County fair authorization ‑ Forfeiture.
		11‑39‑05. Disposition of property.
		11‑39‑06. County funding to cease when fair not held ‑ Misappropriation of funds.
		11‑39‑07. Power to make regulations governing premises.
		11‑39‑08. Director's civil immunity.
		11‑39‑09. Treasurer to give bond ‑ Duty of officers and directors.
		11‑39‑10. Nonliability of state for debts ‑ Exception.




